
ATKINSON ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
21 Academy Avenue 
Atkinson, New Hampshire 03811  
Public Hearing Meeting Town Hall 
Wednesday, September 9, 2015 
 

Members Present 
 

Others Present 

Glenn Saba, Chair Kevin Camm 
Sam Zannini, Vice Chair Gary Escher 

Shawn Carney 
Bob Connors 
David Farris 

Sue Killam, Planning and Zoning 
Administrator 

Shane Keating 
 

Sue Capeto, Planning and 
Zoning Administrator 

Work Shop 7:00 PM 

Call to Order:  Chair Glenn Saba called the meeting to order at 7:10 PM.   

Correspondence:  none 

Approval of Minutes:  July 8, 2015 and August 12, 2015 

July 8, 2015 Minutes 

The Board reviewed the July 8, 2015 minutes. 

Vice Chair Sam Zannini made a motion to except the minutes of the July 8, 2015 
meeting of the Atkinson Zoning Board of Adjustment as amended.  Member 
Dave Farris seconded the motion.  All members present voted in favor.  Vote 
5/0/0. 

August 12, 2015 Minutes 

The Atkinson Zoning Board of Adjustment reviewed the minutes of the August 12, 
2015 meeting. 

Member Shane Keating made a motion to approve the minutes of the August 12, 
2015 meeting as amended.  The motion was seconded by Member Bob Connors.  
All members of the Atkinson Zoning Board of Adjustment present voted in favor.  
Vote:  5/0/0. 

Public Hearing – 7:30 P.M.  - Chair Saba opened the public hearing at 7:30 PM 
September 9, 2015 

Application for Variance from Article IV Section 400:4 submitted by Kevin Camm for 
Gary Escher to allow a proposed addition within 1.7 feet of the sideline on property 
owned by Gary and Erika Escher located at 19 Hemlock Shore Dr, Map 22 Lot 75 in 
the RR3 Zone. 

Abutters:  Chapman Realty Trust, Tracy Daley, Raymond Fisher; Karen Blumell - 
present, Michael Valenti, Gary and Erika Escher- present, Kevin Camm - present,  



Town of Atkinson Zoning Board of Adjustment - Meeting September 9, 2015 2 

Gary Escher, Kevin Camm and Sean Connery came before the Board.  Kevin Camm 
passed out copies of the plan for the Board.   

Chair Saba pointed out a drafting error on the plan, two lot "76" were labeled, but the 
applicant's lot is not labeled.   

The applicant would like to add a garage and bonus space above it.  The plan the 
applicant is presenting to the Board is for a 23x30 garage and which is 2.5 feet from 
the sideline and 17.8 feet to the right of way line.  The plan has been amended from 
the original application. 

Chair Saba asked if the Board had any questions.  Then, Chair Saba asked if there 
were questions from the abutters. 

Karen Blumell asked if the proposed garage was for two cars with space above.  Mr. 
Camm explained that the space above the proposed garage was storage space.  Ms. 
Blumell asked how close the building would be to the Chapman property.  Mr. Camm 
responded that the structure would be 2.5 feet from the sideline and 2.5 feet from the 
corner.  Ms. Blumell showed her property on the plan.  She expressed concern about 
the size of the garage.  Mr. Escher explained that he spoke to Dana Chapman, the 
abutter, and Mr. Chapman did not have a problem with the size of the structure.  Mr. 
Camm explained that the reason for the 2 car garage is to keep the cars in the winter.  
The applicant has 2 cars and a motorcycle.   

In answer to Ms. Blumell's concerns, Mr. Camm explained that the building would be 
fairly low and showed her the plans.   

Chair Saba asked if there were other questions.   

Mr. Farris asked what the side setback was.  Mr. Camm explained that it is 15 feet.   

Chair Saba asked where the septic system is and Mr. Camm explained that it is at the 
rear of the building and was installed in 2008.  Chair Saba asked about the proposed 
deck in front of the existing deck.  Mr. Camm explained that speaking to the building 
inspector, the applicant would not have to go to the Board to extend the deck in front 
another six feet because of all the decks in the area.  The Board discussed the deck 
and the setback.  Chair Saba pointed out that the proposed deck was within the 15 
feet side setback but there would not be a 30 foot front setback.  The setback from the 
proposed garage and deck would need to be shown on the plan.   

Ms. Killam explained that the notice was not published properly.  She also asked if a 
shoreline permit is required from the State and if the applicant had asked the Fire 
Chief's opinion on the distance between the structures.  Mr. Camm explained that he 
spoke to the Chief and his concerns were that the space above would be a living 
structure and if there would be windows on the side next to the other garage.   

Mr. Camm explained that the application requests a structure within 1.7 feet from the 
lot line where 15 feet is required and 15 feet from a right of way line where 30 feet is 
required.  Ms. Killam explained that the application has the request but it did not get 
into the notice.  The application will have to be renoticed.   



Town of Atkinson Zoning Board of Adjustment - Meeting September 9, 2015 3 

Ms. Killam also asked if the applicant had spoken to the Atkinson Fire Chief.  Mr. 
Camm explained that he had spoken to Chief Murphy.  He had questioned if it was just 
a garage and if there were windows towards the neighbors garage and if it would be a 
full sized living space.  Also if there would be fire suppression. 

Mr. Zannini stated that relief would be needed from the deck and expressed concern 
that the application did not say anything about the deck or the garage.  The Board 
discussed the deck and the setback.  Mr. Camm explained that the application just 
states it is for the structure.  Chair Saba clarified that with the addition, the setback will 
be 17.5 feet.  The Board expressed concern that the plan does not identify the deck, 
the addition or the garage. 

Chair Saba requested to talk about the structure and if the upstairs would be living 
space.  Mr. Camm explained that the upstairs would not be living space, it would just 
be used for storage.  There would be no heat and no plumbing.  Mr. Camm informed 
the Board that this is a preliminary plan and the height is not shown.  Due to the fact 
that the driveway is very steep, the height will not be that great, it will almost be like a 
garage under.  From the ground to the peak, the mean average height is about 15 
feet.  Part of the structure will be below ground.  The applicant would also like a 
seasonal room off the kitchen which will be built on pylons, not a full foundation.  The 
seasonal room will be between the garage and the house and will use up six feet of 
the deck.  The sun room will be 10 feet 8 inches wide and 12 feet out, extending the 
length of the proposed deck. 

Chair Saba asked if the Board had questions.   

Mr. Farris asked where the current main entrance is.  The applicant explained that it is 
where the garage would be.  There is no door on the front or the rear of the house.  
Mr. Camm explained that there are sliders in front of the house but there are no stairs 
off the porch.  Mr. Escher explained that there are big exit windows in the back 
bedroom.  There is a shared well with the abutter on Lot 74. 

Chair Saba asked if there were other questions.   

Mr. Zannini had some comments.  First, he asked why the proposed garage was 30 
feet deep.  Mr. Camm explained that the applicant wanted to store his motorcycle and 
snow blower.  Mr. Zannini responded that it is nice to be able to store the motorcycle 
and the snow blower and pointed out that if the structure were not so long, it would not 
be as close to the lot line. 

Mr. Saba asked the applicant if they had any data on the surrounding properties in the 
neighborhood for setbacks.  Mr. Saba did a drive by of the neighborhood and it is 
congested, but there is space between the structures.  Mr. Camm stated that he did 
not have that information but could obtain it as well as aerial views. 

Vice Chair Zannini reiterated his concern about the depth of the garage.   

Mr. Saba pointed out that the applicant still needed a shoreline permit and requested 
the applicant come back with data of the neighborhood and some aerials.  He would 
also like to hear the opinion of the Fire Chief.  The Board is concerned about how 
close the new structure will be to the lot line.   



Town of Atkinson Zoning Board of Adjustment - Meeting September 9, 2015 4 

Mr. Camm replied that it would not be possible to get a vehicle through the area as the 
structure is now.  Mr. Camm requested time to talk to the applicant. 

Vice Chair Sam Zannini made a motion for a five minute recess.  The motion was 
seconded by Member David Farris.  All members of the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment present voted in favor.  Vote:  5/0/0. 

Chair Saba brought the September 9, 2015 public hearing of the Atkinson Zoning 
Board of Adjustment back to order at 8:12 pm.   

Mr. Camm pointed out that there is fire truck access from Boyden Street and is willing 
to discuss fire suppression systems with the fire chief.  He spoke to the applicant and 
they agreed to change the garage size to 20x30 feet, giving a 5.5 feet setback on the 
side.  They would have one big door for the garage instead of two small doors.  Mr. 
Camm explained that he was informed by the neighbors that the original setbacks for 
the neighborhood were five feet. 

Chair Saba asked about the lines behind the garage.  Mr. Camm explained that it is 
pavement.  Chair Saba pointed out that the encroachment goes to the line.  Mr. Camm 
explained that the trapezoid on the plan is a ledge outcrop.  The pavement comes up 
from the road and works around the ledge.  The impervious change will be negligible 
because it would be from pavement to a roof.  There would be no blasting, the ledge 
outcrop cold be removed with a jackhammer.  No test pits have been done. 

Chair Saba asked if there were more questions. 

Mr. Camm offered to have an overlay to show other properties in the neighborhood 
and the setbacks.  He asked if the change in garage size and setback is helpful.  The 
Board agreed that the additional setback is helpful and suggested that when the 
applicant comes back, he have an overlay showing setbacks for other properties in the 
neighborhood. 

Chair Saba asked how long it would take for the shoreline permit and if the Board was 
delaying anything.  Mr. Camm explained that it would be an expedited shoreline 
permit.  He informed the Board that the applicant was willing to do whatever is needed 
to assist the Board with a decision.   

Mr. Escher pointed out that all the lots and structures along the shore were very close 
together.  Mr. Camm will show the setbacks for other properties on the plan.  Chair 
Saba reiterated that the five foot setback is helpful, but it is still closer than the Board 
would normally allow.  Showing other setbacks in the neighborhood would also be 
helpful. 

Mr. Zannini would like to see the plan cleaned up with additional information.  Chair 
Saba would like to see the proposed setbacks shown so the Board would not have to 
draw on the plan, also the proper lot numbers.  Mr. Zannini would like to see the 
closest point from the setback, the relief needed for the front of the garage to the 
street, the proposed sunroom and deck if they are going to be within the setback or 
even across the front and all the setbacks.  Chair Saba asked about the deck and Mr. 
Camm explained that the applicant is proposing to add six feet to the deck for a total of 
12 feet.  The Board asked that the deck be shown on the plan.  Also, the change in the 



Town of Atkinson Zoning Board of Adjustment - Meeting September 9, 2015 5 

size of the garage with the five foot setbacks.  Mr. Saba would like the bonus room to 
be shown as storage only and the elevation as no greater than 15 feet. 

Vice Chair Sam Zannini made a motion to continue the application to the 
October 14, 2015 meeting.  Member Bob Connors seconded the motion.  All 
Members of the Atkinson Zoning Board of Adjustment voted in favor.  Vote:  
5/0/0. 

Other Business:  There was no other business.  

Chair Saba requested a motion to adjourn. 

Vice Chair Sam Zannini made a motion to adjourn the September 9, 2015 
meeting of the Town of Atkinson Zoning Board of Adjustment at 8:30 PM.  The 
motion was seconded by Member Shane Keating.  All members of the Atkinson 
Zoning Board of Adjustment present voted in favor.  Vote:  5/0/0. 


